

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

ELECTRONIC CATALOG, CURRICULUM AND SCHEDULING MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE SERVICES RFP # 2017-05

RFP RELEASED: 3/09/2017
TECHNICAL QUESTIONS DUE: 12:00 p.m. on 3/16/2017
PROPOSALS DUE: No later than 3:00 p.m. on 3/23/2017

SUBMIT PROPOSALS TO:

San Bernardino Community College District ATTN: Steven Sutorus, Business Manager 114 South Del Rosa Drive, San Bernardino, CA 92408 Phone: 909.382.4031 • Fax: 909.382.0174

Email: ssutorus@sbccd.cc.ca.us



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	INSTI	RUCTION TO VENDORS	4	
	1.1	NOTICE FOR INVITING PROPOSALS	4	
	1.2	PURPOSE	4	
	1.3	REJECTION OF PROPOSALS	4	
	1.4	SUBCONTRACTORS	4	
	1.5 RFP COMPLIANCE, FORMS, AND CERTIFICATES			
		1.5.1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEMNIFICATION & INSURANCE		
		REQUIREMENTS	4	
		1.5.1.1 INSURANCE POLICY REQUIREMENTS	4	
		1.5.2 NON-COLLUSION AFFADAVITS	5	
		1.5.3 AFFIDAVIT OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND INDEMNIFICATION		
		AGREEMENT	5	
		1.5.4 DIR COMPLIANCE	5	
	1.6	CONFIDENTIALITY	5	
	1.7	PROPOSAL FORMAT		
	1.8	PROPOSAL SUBMISSION7		
	1.9	VENDOR CONDUCT		
	1.10	QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP	7	
	1.11	CONTRACT DOCUMENT	7	
	1.12	EVALUATION	7	
	1.13	COST OF PROPOSAL DEVELOPMENT	8	
	1.14	RFP INTERPRETATION AND ADDENDA	8	
	1.15	AWARD	8	
	1.16	16 INDEMNIFICATION		
	1.17	17 NOTICE OF SUIT OR ACTION FILED9		
	1.18	PROHIBITED INTEREST	9	
	1.19	FINAL CONTRACT	9	
	1.20	TIMELINE	10	
2.0	DIST	RICT PROFILE	10	
3.0	LEGA	AL SPECIFICATIONS	10	
4.0	PROJ	JECT SPECIFICATIONS	11	
	4.1	QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE	11	
	4.2	SCOPE OF PROJECT	11	





	4.2.1 GENERAL OVERVIEW	11
	4.2.2 SYSTEM SPECS	12
4.3	PRICING INFORMATION	14
APPENDICE	ES:	
APPENDIX .	A – NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	16
APPENDIX	B – VENDOR PROFILE & DESIGNATION OF NAMES	17
APPENDIX	C – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (To be supplied by Vendor)	
APPENDIX	D – PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (SAMPLE)	18
APPENDIX	E – LOCAL VENDOR DESIGNATION FORM	24



1.0 INSTRUCTION TO VENDORS

This section will provide necessary information for vendors to qualify as legally "responsive" to this Request for Proposals (RFP). This section should be studied carefully before attempting to respond so that proposals are not rejected on a minor technicality that could have been avoided.

1.1 NOTICE FOR INVITING PROPOSALS

Notice is hereby given that the Governing Board of the San Bernardino Community College District (SBCCD) of San Bernardino County is issuing a Request for Proposal for a qualified contractor to provide Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software Services as summarized in the scope of work herein. SBCCD hereby invites you (VENDOR) to submit a Proposal according to the terms and procedures defined herein no later than 3:00 p.m. (PDT) on 3/23/2017, directed to Steven Sutorus, Business Manager, at 114 S. Del Rosa Dr., San Bernardino, CA 92408 as per the specifications on file with Purchasing Office.

1.2 PURPOSE

San Bernardino Community College District (SBCCD) is seeking proposals from qualified contractors who can provide Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software Services.

1.3 REJECTION OF PROPOSALS

SBCCD's Governing Board reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or any part of each proposal; to waive any irregularity in any proposal and to determine which, in its sole judgment, best meets SBCCD's needs to receive an award **after** successful contract negotiations. VENDOR may not withdraw its proposal for a period of **one hundred eighty (180) days** after the opening thereof.

1.4 SUBCONTRACTORS

If a subcontractor will be used by VENDOR to comply with any portions of this RFP, that fact must be stated in the proposal. The names of the subcontractors and their duties shall be specified in the proposal.

1.5 RFP COMPLIANCE, FORMS, AND CERTIFICATES

1.5.1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

There are certain indemnifications and insurance provisions which must be included in the final agreement(s) with SBCCD. The VENDOR shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by statute and shall submit a certificate of such insurance with its proposal response. SBCCD requires the following levels of coverage:

- A. Commercial General Liability including personal injury and property damage in the amount of \$1,000,000;
- B. Employer's Liability in the amount of \$1,000,000;
- C. Professional Liability in the amount of \$1,000,000;
- D. Automobile Liability, all automobiles, in the amount of \$300,000 for combined single limit.

1.5.1.1 INSURANCE POLICY REQUIREMENTS

The foregoing insurance coverage plans shall be primary and noncontributing with respect to any other insurance which may be maintained by



SBCCD.

- A. All policies, except for Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability and Professional Liability, shall be endorsed to include the San Bernardino Community College District as an additional insured and contain a Cross Liability or Severability Clause.
- B. The Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability policies shall be endorsed to waive all rights of subrogation against SBCCD.
- C. SBCCD does not represent or warrant that the types or limits of insurance adequately protect VENDOR'S interest or sufficiently cover VENDOR'S liability. Failure by VENDOR to maintain the insurance coverage plans specified herein shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement.
- D. Prior to commencing work, VENDOR will furnish SBCCD with properly endorsed certificates of insurance acceptable to SBCCD which provide that the coverage will not be canceled or materially changed except upon thirty (30) days written notice to SBCCD. All certificates must be faxed or emailed, followed by a hard copy "wet ink" signed original in the mail to: San Bernardino Community College District, Attn: Steven Sutorus, Business Manager, 114 South Del Rosa Drive, San Bernardino CA 92408.
- E. No payments will be made to VENDOR until current and complete certificate(s) of insurance are on file with the Business Services Department of SBCCD.

1.5.2 NON-COLLUSION AFFADAVITS

Affidavits are required to be completed by the VENDOR declaring that the proposal is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. Please see Appendix B.

1.5.3 AFFIDAVIT OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

Vendors may designate selected portions of their proposal as confidential, such as proprietary information not publicly disclosed about their products. However, if a claim to release the confidential portion is made under the California Public Records Act, SBCCD will notify the VENDOR of such a claim but will not defend the VENDOR's rights to privacy.

1.5.4 SB 854 DIR COMPLIANCE

Bidders are advised that this contract may be a public work for purposes of the California Labor Code, which requires payment of prevailing wages. Wage rates can be obtained from the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations at http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/dprewagedetermination.htm As of March 1, 2015 all contractors bidding on a public works project must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works.html

1.6 CONFIDENTIALITY

The submitted proposals and Response Forms are public records subject to public disclosure pursuant to the provisions of the Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250). SBCCD will notify the VENDOR of any public request for disclosure of such documents.



1.7 PROPOSAL FORMAT

VENDOR shall use the forms and formats used in the appendices and described herein. The use of other forms may be cause for rejection of proposals. Every effort has been made to make the entry of this information as straightforward as possible, but in a format that can be fairly evaluated for inclusion in the RFP and in the order presented in this RFP. It is the intent of this RFP and the appendices to ascertain full and complete disclosure of all costs related to the successful implementation of the products and services requested. If there are additional costs or requirements which are not covered in the RFP and appendices it is the VENDOR's responsibility to present that information during the RFP Window (the time following RFP release and the date the RFP Responses are due). Failure to disclose any of these costs in the RFP Response may constitute disqualification. All proposals should be submitted in the following format to enable SBCCD to fairly evaluate and compare all proposals. Failure to follow this format may constitute disqualification from consideration.

Section 1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Vendors are asked to outline briefly the entire scope of the proposal and key elements to which readers should pay particular attention.

Section 2.0 VENDOR PROFILE

Vendors may describe in narrative form the nature and history of their company, relationships with other vendors if proposing jointly, etc.

Section 3.0 LEGAL SPECIFICATIONS

Vendors may wish to clarify their responses on the legal specifications and their policies with respect to contract negotiations. A blanket rejection of all SBCCD Professional Services Agreement terms in lieu of VENDOR standard contract terms will deem VENDOR as non-responsive and may remove them from consideration.

Section 4.0 PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

VENDOR shall outline and describe their Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software Services proposals following the scope and specifications enumerated in Section 4.0. Specific exceptions to SBCCD specifications should be described and justified here as well as any additional information the VENDOR feels relevant to their proposal. Paragraphs shall be numbered to follow the enumeration of Section 4.0 so as to provide the Evaluation Committee the ability to objectively score each proposal.

Appendices:

The only official response to this RFP is what is submitted on the RFP Response and the appendices included with this proposal. Ancillary and supplemental comments will be considered in the evaluation but cannot substitute or contradict responses put in the forms.

Appendix A - Non-Collusion Affidavit

No additional directions necessary. This standard form is self-explanatory.

Appendix B - Vendor Profile Form & Designation of Names

This is the official signature page for the RFP Response and where pertinent information is identified.



Appendix C - Financial Statements

Please furnish financial information that accurately describes the financial stability of VENDOR.

Appendix D - Professional Services Agreement

Included in this appendix to the RFP is an example of all of SBCCD's required legal clauses. If an alternate is proposed, exact language must be included in VENDOR response.

Appendix E – Local Vendor Designation

No additional directions necessary. This standard form is self-explanatory.

1.8 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

Five (5) copies of the proposal and one USB flash drive containing the electronic RFP response are required. Proposal copies should be submitted in three-ring, loose-leaf binder form. All data shall be clearly and legibly written, preferably typewritten, except for signatures. Signatures must be made in the appropriate spaces in compliance with legal requirements. Changes or erasures must be initialed by the individual signing the proposal. All blank spaces provided must have entries.

Proposals must be received in **sealed envelopes or containers** clearly showing the VENDOR name, address and **San Bernardino Community College District**, **Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software Services**, **RFP 2017-05.** No proposals may be withdrawn after submission.

1.9 VENDOR CONDUCT

During the RFP Window (from release of this RFP to Final award), VENDOR is not permitted to contact any SBCCD employees or members of the Governing Board unless at the request of SBCCD's designated contact person found on the title page of this RFP or to fulfill pre-existing contractual obligations. No gratuities of any kind will be accepted, including meals, gifts, or trips. Violation of these conditions may constitute immediate disqualification.

1.10 QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP

Any administrative or technical questions concerning the requirements presented in this RFP must be directed to the contact on the title page of this RFP via US Mail, fax, or email; e-mail is preferable. Technical questions must be submitted to Steven Sutorus, Business Manager (ssutorus@sbccd.edu) no later than 12:00 p.m. on 3/16/2017. The Evaluation Committee will draft responses to be posted as Addenda.

1.11 CONTRACT DOCUMENT

Certain contract language acceptable to SBCCD covering all of the services specified in this RFP are detailed in Appendix D and Section 3.0 related thereto. No terms or conditions can be added or changed by vendors after the proposals are received by SBCCD. Attempts to change the terms or conditions specified after the proposals are received by SBCCD may cause a proposal to be rejected as non-responsive. Vendors may propose alternate and additional language to the terms provided, but are subject to negotiation and acceptance by SBCCD

1.12 EVALUATION

The SBCCD Evaluation Committee will review proposals and determine those that are



responsive. The Evaluation Criteria include, but are not limited to, the following:

A. Responsive:

- a. Compliance with Required Forms and Certificates,
- b. Adherence to the RFP Response Forms and format,
- c. Complete consideration of all project specifications,
- d. Complete cost proposal;

B. Responsible:

- a. Sufficient references for which similar types of services had been provided,
- b. Proof of financial stability and viability,
- c. Experience of the firm and assigned personnel with the services proposed,
- d. Resources that demonstrate adequate capacity to perform services proposed;

C. Proposal:

- a. Value and quality of services to be rendered,
- b. Demonstrated knowledge of legal requirements,
- c. Work plan in conformity with scope of project,
- d. Fees and costs:

In the event a single proposal is received, SBCCD may conduct a separate cost analysis of the proposal. Where it is not possible to obtain a valid cost analysis, it may be necessary for SBCCD to conduct an independent cost analysis of the proposal price.

1.13 COST OF PROPOSAL DEVELOPMENT

SBCCD disclaims any financial responsibility for, and VENDOR shall be solely responsible for, any costs incurred by the VENDOR in responding to this RFP, whether or not it is the successful VENDOR, including the costs for bonding, legal costs for any reason, visitation/travel expenses, reproduction, postage and mailing, and the like.

1.14 RFP INTERPRETATION AND ADDENDA

Any changes, clarifications, or other interpretations regarding this RFP may be sent by SBCCD to each VENDOR who has received or requested an RFP and in addition, will be posted on District's website. These Addenda will become part of the RFP and will be included by reference in the Final contracts between the VENDOR(s) and SBCCD.

1.15 AWARD

As explained above, any award is subject to successful contract negotiations between SBCCD and the selected VENDOR. Selection as the Preferred Vendor is not an award and the process will be concluded with the execution of the final agreement(s) with the VENDOR concerned pursuant to Governing Board authorization.

The final Agreement(s) shall be signed by the successful VENDOR and returned, within ten (10) working days after the Agreement has been mailed or otherwise delivered to VENDOR. No Agreement shall be considered as in effect until it has been fully executed by all of the parties thereto. Failure to execute the Agreement within ten (10) working days after the Agreement has been mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful VENDOR shall be just cause for the cancellation of the award. Award may then be made to an alternative VENDOR (selected by the Committee), or the proposal may be readvertised as SBCCD may decide.



1.16 INDEMNIFICATION

VENDOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless SBCCD and its Governing Board, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all liabilities, costs, penalties, fines, forfeitures, demands, claims, causes of action, suits, and costs and expenses related thereto (including reasonable attorney's fees) which any or all of them may thereafter suffer, incur, be responsible for or pay out as a result of bodily injuries (including death) to any person or damage to any property (public or private), alleged to be caused by or arising from: (a) the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of VENDOR or VENDOR's subcontractor, agents or employees; (b) any violations of federal, state, or local statutes or regulations arising out of or resulting from any negligent act, error or omission of VENDOR or its employees, agents, or subcontractors; (c) the use of any copyrighted materials or patented inventions; or (d) VENDOR breach of its warranties or obligations under this Agreement.

The rights and obligations created by this indemnification provision shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.

1.17 NOTICE OF SUIT OR ACTION FILED

The VENDOR shall give SBCCD immediate notice of any suit or action filed or prompt notice of any claim made against SBCCD arising out of the performance of this contract. The VENDOR shall furnish immediately to SBCCD copies of all pertinent papers received by the VENDOR. If the amount of the liability claimed exceeds the amount of insurance coverage, the VENDOR shall authorize representatives of SBCCD to collaborate with counsel for the insurance carrier, if any, in setting or defending such claim.

1.18 PROHIBITED INTEREST

No Board member, officer, or employee of the San Bernardino Community College District or of a local Public Body during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof. If any such interest comes to the knowledge of any party at any time, a full and complete disclosure of all such information will be made in writing to the other parties, even if such interest would not be considered a conflict of interest under Article 4 of Chapter 1 of Division 4 of Title 1 (Sections 490-497) of the Government code of the State of California.

1.19 FINAL CONTRACT

The following documents are considered part of the final agreement, in order of precedence:

- A. The final agreement between SBCCD and the VENDOR(s);
- B. All schedules, implementation plans, service descriptions, and the like developed during the proposal evaluation phase for inclusion in the Final agreement;
- C. The VENDOR proposal in total, including all addenda and attachments;
- D. This RFP as originally released, with Appendixes, Exhibits, and any addenda released prior to proposal opening;
- E. RFP Response and any addenda released prior to proposal opening.

SBCCD may terminate any resulting Agreement(s) for convenience at any time by giving the VENDOR written notice thereof. Upon termination, SBCCD shall pay the VENDOR his allowable cost incurred to date of termination, and those costs deemed reasonably necessary by SBCCD to effect such termination. The effective date of termination shall be the date of Notice of Termination.



1.20 TIMELINE

The anticipated timeline, subject to change, for the complete process is as follows:

Event	Tentative Date
RFP Release – Response Window Opens	03/09/2017
Technical Questions Due	03/16/2017
Proposals Due – Response Window Closes - 3:00pm	03/23/2017
Presentations of Selected Respondents, if applicable	TBD
Preferred Vendor selected, contract negotiated and awarded	04/1/2017
Contract subject to Governing Board approval	4/13/2017
Work Commences	4/14/2017

2.0 DISTRICT PROFILE

The San Bernardino Community College District was established in 1926 and serves most of the County of San Bernardino and a small portion of the County of Riverside. The District includes two comprehensive community colleges: San Bernardino Valley College and Crafton Hills College, a Professional Development Center, and KVCR-TV and FM. The District employs approximately 800 full-time permanent faculty and staff and approximately 600 part-time faculty, and have approximately 17,500 students enrolled in one or more courses during the 2016 Spring Semester.

San Bernardino Valley College (SBVC) is located in the city of San Bernardino, and serves 12,000 students every semester. Now in its 90th year, San Bernardino Valley College is a comprehensive community college offering a full range of degrees, transfer programs to four-year institutions, and certificates in a wide range of careers. As the original and largest of two colleges in the San Bernardino Community College District, SBVC is a regional leader in career and technical education with programs in nursing, human services, computer information technology, welding, electrical and dozens more. Weekend, online, evening, short-term and distance learning classes are available along with classes in Big Bear.

Additional detailed information regarding the College is available at: www.valleycollege.edu.

3.0 LEGAL SPECIFICATIONS

SBCCD's Legal Specifications are contained in a sample contract template in Appendix D. This reflects the terms and conditions necessary to be included in the Final agreement(s) for the products and services specified herein. These specifications are to be used as the basis for the Final agreement(s) but are negotiable. The purpose will be to standardize the evaluation of the VENDOR agreements and to augment them where there are provisions required by SBCCD that are not included in the existing VENDOR agreements. SBCCD requires that each of these specifications be addressed in the Final agreement(s) in essentially the language provided or some acceptable substitute language. The inclusion of the VENDOR standard forms and/or boilerplate does not constitute a response to these Legal Specifications.



4.0 PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

This section will provide necessary information regarding the services SBCCD shall expect outlined and described in a successful proposal. Services proposed in addition to the Scope of Project should be separately identified and quoted, and SBCCD shall consider these additional services optional. Prior to submitting a response it is recommended for the VENDOR to drive by each campus to be better able to gauge the scope of the job, if necessary.

4.1 QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

This section should establish the ability of VENDOR to exceptionally perform the required work by reasons of demonstrated competence in the proposed services to be rendered, the nature and relevance of similar work currently being performed or recently completed, and competitive advantages over other firms in the same industry.

- A. Furnish background information including date of incorporation/founding, legal form, location of offices, principal line of business, number of employees, days/hours of operation and any other pertinent data.
- B. Describe most noteworthy qualifications for providing proposed services to be rendered. Specifically highlight those qualifications that provide a competitive advantage.
- C. Describe any significant developments in organization such as changes in ownership or personnel in the past five years.
- D. Describe any litigation pending against VENDOR.
- E. List, at minimum, three references to include the reference's firm, name, respective salutation, position title, mail address, phone number, fax number, and email.
- F. Identify Project Manager assigned to SBCCD account. Include a detailed resume of Project Manager including description of qualifications, professional certifications, job functions, and office location.
- G. Identify the key personnel that would be assigned to SBCCD account. Include brief resumes of key personnel including description of individual qualifications, professional certifications, job functions, and office locations. Furnish an organizational chart for key personnel assigned to SBCCD account.

4.2 SCOPE OF PROJECT

This section should establish that Vendor understands SBCCD's objectives and requirements by demonstrating its ability to meet those requirements and outlining the plan for accomplishing the specified work.

4.2.1 GENERAL OVERVIEW

The San Bernardino Community College District is looking to procure an Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software System for its San Bernardino Valley College campus that utilizes the following functions: manage the entire catalog, curriculum and schedule online.

<u>CATALOG AND SCHEDULE MODULE</u>: Manage the work flow processes for everyone involved; track edits and track status; archive copies of previous versions; integrate with Colleague and Schedule25; flags inconsistencies and generate aggregated reports for the catalog, curriculum



and schedule; publish to web, mobile, tablet and print; integrate with department websites; authenticate using existing username and password credentials; ongoing technical support and training that allows the campus to work with consistent personnel.

<u>CURRICULUM MODULE</u>: Track and manage data within the module as to the curriculum approval process (dates of campus, regional, and state approvals); provide ability to query reports with the dates of approval at each level; provide for the ability to customize catalog and schedule supplements and addendums per the needs of the college; authenticate using existing username and password credentials; ongoing technical support and training that allows the campus to work with consistent personnel.

4.2.2 SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

San Bernardino Valley College is seeking to digitize the college catalog process eliminating reliance on paper catalogs and improving productivity, efficiency, and transparency. The interactive platform will streamline the process to create, organize, edit and archive course and program data by integrating Colleague and Schedule25 and the curriculum management system. Automated workflow processes are expected to manage participation in content creation and approvals with each step tracked and documented. In addition, the software is also expected to format and print professional-quality catalogs and schedule on demand for students and staff wishing to generate hard copies.

Services:

- Complete implementation within a 16-week duration
- Kick off meeting
- Overview of implementation
- Roles and responsibilities, present dedicated team manager
- Define expectations
- Present conclusions drawn during proposal submittal process and implications
- Provide recommendations
- The Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software services are expected to provide the following:
 - Manage the entire catalog process online
 - Improved services for students, faculty, staff and public through a cross-platform interface
 - Access to important resources 24-hours a day, seven-days a week
 - Improved search features and accuracy of data within the information flow
 - Provide index and/or table of contents
 - Integrate with web, mobile, tablet and print functionalities (including responsive design capabilities)
 - Workflow management including track edits and track status
 - Integrate with department websites
 - Authenticate existing username and password credentials
 - Archived copies of previous versions
 - Provide ongoing technical support and training that allows the campus to work with consistent personnel



- Provide both initial and ongoing training allowing interface with dedicated client services representative consistently via both email and telephone
- Ongoing upgrades
- Ability to print web pages as well as PDF files

Tasks:

The following are the expected tasks and deliverables associated with the Electronic Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software Services effort:

Task 1: Project Initiation

- Meet with District IT to develop and finalize a details work plan and schedule, which at a
 minimum will establish meeting and presentation schedules, clarify roles and
 responsibilities of both staff and consultant teams in accordance with Electronic Catalog,
 Curriculum and Scheduling Management Software services terms and conditions and
 appropriate to meet the highest standard for the consultant's practice.
- Collect necessary data including existing catalog content, course data, college hierarchy, department information, faculty data, anticipated user account set-up, desired search functions.
- Ability to convert from Microsoft Word files into e-catalog and scheduling systems.
- Individual college workflow analysis and customization of workflow systems process.
- Obtain calendar layout and information.
- Obtain associated course and program planning tools.

Task 2: Customization

- Develop catalog, curriculum and schedule design in accordance with college design intent including content and layout presentation.
- Create user-friendly rules for formatting.
- Create custom data entry forms and files.
- Convert written text into tables where applicable.
- Support student information systems data presentation.
- Insert existing tables or images where applicable.
- One-click ability to see corresponding courses and programs.

Task 3: Implementation

- Adapt proposed system to meet the needs of existing IT systems including authentication of existing username and password credentials, integration between proposed system and existing databases.
- Create beta test site including site map for multiple sample courses and programs.
- Campus set up and deployment consultations.
- Migrate previous year catalog, curriculum and schedule into software.
- Review of template sample files and website templates for catalog, curriculum and schedule and ability to modify as needed.
- Publish online and PDF versions when requested.



- Final acceptance by college and IT.
- Dedicated catalog, curriculum and schedule editor to fine tune layout before presenting for review.
- Upload catalog, curriculum and schedule data each semester/year and replace previous data.
- Should include "at-a-glance" page showing the status of all pending approvals, with ability to notify approvers of a pending task.

Task 4: Training

 Train staff and end users on-site and in-person for start-up and provide ongoing training and support as needed.

4.3 PRICING INFORMATION

Professional Fees:

Provide, with your proposal, detailed and itemized fixed fees. The selection committee with make their recommendation based on qualifications and will then enter contract negotiations including fee-based discussions.

A Fixed Fee proposal will be based on fully-loaded hourly billing rates for each service classification. When providing costs, proposal shall include costs for all required overhead expenses including insurance. Travel cost from the Firm's place of business including time, overhead and related expenditures shall be incorporated into the unit prices for each line item and are not to be identified as separate costs. Firms are expected to perform services at the rate amount in the fee proposal regardless of the possibility that staff is drawn from a variety of office locations.

Fixed Fees provided in this submittal will be used as the basis for contract negotiations. The final, all inclusive, rate shall be negotiated after the selection process. Any increases must be approved in writing by the District prior to the performance of services. Agreements will be based on a lump sum basis.

No separate payment will be made for any other costs of performance or out of pocket expenses, including, without limitation, mileage or time required for dispatching personnel to the District, subsistence, lodging, fuel charge, vehicle use, transmitting reports, administrative charges, or other similar activities necessary for performance of the services for SBVC.

Proposers shall specifically include hourly rates for full-time services in their proposals for the following:

- Principal
- Lead-Project Manager/Evaluator
- Associates
- Clerical staff
- Overtime and weekend rates for the above



- Proposer may choose to provide an itemized fee schedule for extra or additional services that are not within Scope of Services
- Include fee schedules for consultants, if used

Identify any constraints or assumptions that affect the proposed fee. Services that are not specially included in the RFP exhibits may be provided as supplementary information. Be thorough and specific as this will form the basis of any contract negotiations for services.

END OF BID DOCUMENT



Appendix A

Non-Collusion Declaration

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

	declares:			
I am the		of	RACTOR Name)	_, the party
making the fo	(Title) pregoing bid.	(CONTI	RACTOR Name)	
company, as sham. The bit a false or sham or agreed with bidder has not conference woverhead, procontained in bid price or a relative there depository, or sham of the conference of the confere	sociation, organizated der has not direct am bid. The bidder or are to in any manner, of the anyone to fix to fit, or cost element the bid are true. The bid any corporer to any member	ation, or corporation of the corporation of the corporation of the corporation of the corporation of the corporation, and corporation of the corporation, partnership, corporation, partnership,	If of, any undisclosed perior. The bid is genuine a uced or solicited any of or indirectly colluded, con sham bid, or to refrair, sought by agreement, e bidder or any other bid or that of any other bid directly or indirectly, sets thereof, or divulged company, association or effectuate a collusive for such purpose.	and not collusive her bidder to pure prospired, conniver communication widder, or to fixed later. All statements or information or day, organization,
partnership, jentity, hereb	oint venture, limite	ed liability company he or she has full	nalf of a bidder that y, limited liability partne power to execute, and	ership, or any ot
	der the penalty of		e laws of the State of	
foregoing is	true and correct a		(City, State)	



Appendix B

Contractor Profile Form & Designation of Names

CONTRACTOR Name:		
DUE NO	LATER THAN 3:00 P.M. PST on March	n 23, 2017
	s Notice Inviting Proposals for Electronic ent Software Services, the undersigned	
	SBCCD Catalog, Curriculum and Scheduling Ma Attn: Steven Sutorus, Business Manage 114 S. Del Rosa Dr. San Bernardino, CA 92408	
Section 1: Designation of	Names	
Person Responsible for Bid	:	
Street Address:		
SBCCD, State & Zip: _		
Telephone:	Fax:	
Email: _		
Business Type:	TIN: prporation, Sole Proprietorship, etc.)	
(Co	orporation, Sole Proprietorship, etc.)	(EIN or SSN)
CONTRACTOR must enter next page of the Bid Form tools, equipment, overhead	a fixed price for each Unit Price item in if applicable. Bidder's unit prices shald, profit, and all other direct and indivired. Prices must be net including disco	I include all labor, materials, rect costs and expenses to
I,	, the undersigned, the	of
(Type/Print Name	, the undersigned, the) , hereby declare that I am duly a	(Title)
incorporation of the following offer to SBCCD that if awa and that, under penalty of	examined the requirements of this B g Addenda,; that this rded, all prices shall remain effective a perjury under the laws of the State of afformation contained in this Bid Form is	id; acknowledge receipt and Bid Form constitutes a firm s required on this Bid Form; California, to the best of my
Signature:		Date:



Appendix D

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (Sample)

	JTH DEL ROSA DRIVE RNARDINO, CALIFORNIA, 92408
	greement is made and entered into by and between the SBCCD hereinafter referred to as RICT", andhereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR".
	RECITALS
WHER and;	REAS, the DISTRICT needs professional services;
	RAS, the CONTRACTOR is professionally and specially trained and competent to provide services; and,
	REAS , the authority for entering into this agreement is contained in Section 53060 of the nment Code and such other provisions of California Law as may be applicable,
NOW .	THEREFORE, the parties to this agreement do hereby mutually agree as follows:
	AGREEMENT
1.	DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES Services shall be rendered per RFP of this agreement.
2.	TERM CONTRACTOR will commence work under this agreement on, and will diligently prosecute the work thereafter. CONTRACTOR will complete the work not later than CONTRACTOR shall not commence work until the Board has approved the Agreement. This agreement may be renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms upon written notice by DISTRICT.
3.	 COMPENSATION a. Payment(s) shall be made in the following manner: in the amounts listed on Exhibit B. b. The contract amount shall not exceed the original purchase order amount. No change order can be made or incorporated in to this agreement to increase the not to exceed amount. Therefore, the "Not to Exceed" amount for this contract is set at



c. Billing:

CONTRACTOR shall invoice DISTRICT in triplicate upon completion of each phase of services rendered and provide original receipts of all reimbursable travel-related expenses.

d. DISTRICT will not withhold federal or state income tax from payments made to CONTRACTOR under this agreement, but will provide CONTRACTOR with a statement of payments made by DISTRICT to CONTACTOR at the conclusion of each calendar year.

4. TERMINATION

This agreement may be canceled by either party without cause by written notice and with fifteen (15) calendar days.

5. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

DISTRICT and CONTRACTOR hereby agree and acknowledge that CONTRACTOR, in providing the services herein specified, is and at all times shall be acting as an independent contractor. As such, CONTRACTOR shall have the right to determine the time and the manner in which the contracted services are performed. DISTRICT shall not have the right to control or to determine the results to be attained by the work of CONTRACTOR, nor the details, methods, or means by which that result is to be attained. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an agent or employee of DISTRICT and shall not be entitled to participate in any employee fringe benefits of DISTRICT. The relationship of the parties will be based on the IRS guidelines (see Attachment A). The DISTRICT reserves the right to make the final determination as to the correct relationship of the parties.

6. CONTRACTOR'S STATUS

Contractor expressly represents and covenants that he/she is a business duly licensed under the relevant rules and regulations of the State of California and that services provided to the DISTRICT are provided pursuant to such rules and regulations.

7. INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

- I. A. The DISTRICT, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as insured's as respects: liability arising out of work performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the CONTRACTOR
 - B. For any claims related to this project, the CONTRACTOR's Insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the DISTRICT, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the DISTRICT, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
 - C. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) day's prior written notice has be proved to the DISTRICT.



- II. Professional liability, and/or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form:
 - A. The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract and/or the beginning of the contract work.
 - B. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of contracted work.
 - C. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.
 - D. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the DISTRICT for review.
- III. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A-VII unless otherwise acceptable to the DISTRICT. Exception may be made for Stat Compensations Insurance Fund when no specifically rated.
- IV. Verification of Coverage: Consultant shall furnish the DISTRICT with original certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by the clause. The Endorsement should be in a format that conforms to DISTRICT requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the DISTRICT before work commences. However, failure to do so shall not operate as a waiver of these insurance requirements. The DISTRICT reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage require by these specifications at any time.
- V. Waiver of Subrogation: CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer or contractor may acquire form vendor by virtue of the payment or any loss. CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation.
- VI. Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the DISTRICT for all work performed by the CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents and subcontractors.
- 8. CONTRACTOR shall maintain Insurance with limits of no less than as stated below: General Liability shall have a limit no less than of \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability shall have a limit no less than \$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. The DISTRICT shall be endorsed as additional insured on the policy Workers' Compensation shall have a limit no less that as required by the



State of California. Professional Liability shall have a limit no less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

9. HOLD HARMLESS

CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, save and hold DISTRICT, its officers, agents and employees harmless from any liability for any claims, accusations, or suits at law or in equity, or in any administrative proceeding, that may be brought by third persons on account of personal injury, death, or damage to property, or a property of business or personal interest, or for any fine, forfeiture or civil penalty arising from any act or omission by CONTRACTOR, its officers, agents, or employees while performing operations under the Agreement.

DISTRICT agrees to indemnify, save and hold CONTRACTOR, its officers, agents and employees harmless from any liability for any claims, accusations, or suits at law or in equity, or in any administrative proceeding, that may be brought by third persons on account of personal injury, death, or damage to property, or a property of business or personal interest, or for any fine, forfeiture or civil penalty arising from any act or omission by DISTRICT, its officers, agents, or employees while performing operations under the Agreement.

10. AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written agreement signed by both parties. Failure on the part of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a continuous waiver of the right to compel enforcement of such provision or provisions, nor shall such waiver be construed as a release of any surety from its obligations under this Agreement.

11. ATTORNEY'S FEES

Should any party violate or breach any term or condition of this Agreement, any other party shall have, without limitation, the right to move for entry of judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction, to seek specific performance thereof, and otherwise exercise all remedies available to him, her or it under the law to obtain redress from injury or damage resulting from any such violation or breach. In any such legal proceeding(s) brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred as a consequence hereof.

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

There are no understandings or agreements except as herein expressly stated. Any modifications must be in writing.

13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and not an officer, agent, servant, or employee of DISTRICT. CONTRACTOR is solely responsible for the acts and omissions of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, and sub grantees, if any. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between DISTRICT and CONTRACTOR. Neither CONTRACTOR nor its officers, employees, agents, or sub grantees shall obtain any rights to retirement or other benefits that accrue to DISTRICT employees.



14. LAW TO GOVERN: VENUE

The law of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of San Bernardino. In the event of litigation in a U.S. District Court, exclusive venue shall lie in the Central District of California.

15. NOTICES

All notices herein required shall be in writing and delivered in person or sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

IF TO DISTRICT

Steven Sutorus, Business Services SBCCD 114 South Del Rosa Drive San Bernardino CA 92408 909-382-4031

IF TO CONTRACTOR

16. VALIDITY

If any terms, condition, provision, or covenant of this Agreement shall to any extent be judged invalid, unenforceable, void, or violable for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all remaining terms, conditions, promises and covenants of this Agreement shall be unaffected and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

17. EXHIBIT AND ADDENDUM INCORPORATED

Exhibit "A" is attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

18. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE

If CONTRACTOR is a regular employee of a public entity, all services which CONTRACTOR renders under this agreement will be performed at times other than CONTRACTOR'S regular assigned workday for said entity or during periods of vacation or leave of absence from said entity.

19. STRS RETIREE

CONTRACTOR shall provide DISTRICT with a statement indicating whether or not CONTRACTOR is a retired member of the State Teacher's Retirement System of the State of California.

20. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement is neither assignable nor transferable by either party or by operation of law without the consent in writing of the other party. Consent by either party to one or more assignments or transfers shall not constitute consent to a subsequent assignment or transfer.





IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement.		
	Date	
DISTRICT SIGNATURE		
Steven J. Sutorus, Business Manager		
	Date	
CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE		
Name:	-	
Title:	_	



APPENDIX E

LOCAL VENDOR DESIGNATION

SBCDD AP 6330 Section 3: The Purchasing Department will accept recommendations from the requesting department for potential vendors, but will endeavor, where possible, to encourage the use of local and small business enterprises in its procurement activities. On all procurement activities that must be competitively bid, or for which the District must receive quotes, such will be evaluated with a ten (10%) percent preference for local vendors. The vendor must claim local vendor preference to be considered. Please note the following exceptions:

- Those contracts which State Law or, other law or regulation precludes this local preference.
- Purchases made through cooperative purchasing and leveraged procurement agreements and piggy-back purchases.
- Public Works construction projects.

A "local" vendor will be approved as such when, 1) it conducts business in a physical location within the County of San Bernardino; and 2) it holds a valid business license issued by an agency within the County of San Bernardino; and 3) business has been conducted in such a manner for not less than six months prior to being able to receive the preference. Proof of eligibility will be provided to the District as part of the vendor application process.

Subject to the Local Vendor Preference, final vendor designation will be made by the Purchasing Department.

Is your company requesting to be designated as a local vendor? Yes No
If yes, does your company conduct business in a physical location within the County of San Bernardino? Yes No
If yes, does your company hold a valid business license issued by an agency within the County of San Bernardino? Yes No
If yes, please include a copy of your current business license as an attachment to this application.
If yes, has your company been conducting business in San Bernardino County for at least six months? Yes No